
Petroleum Tank Release Compensation Board 
Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, January 14, 2015 

 
Present: Board members – Petroleum industry representative Vernon Kelley (Chair), Commissioner of the 
Minnesota Department of Commerce (Department) delegate Jan Ludwigson (Vice-Chair), Experience in 
claims adjustment representative Jeanne Hankerson, public member representative William Hefner, and 
Commissioner of the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) delegate Michael Kanner; and Petrofund 
Director, Joel Fischer.   
 
Absent: None 
 
Arrived Late: Board Counsel Assistant Attorney General Michael Tostengard 
 
Location: Meeting Room LL 35, Golden Rule Building, 85 – 7th Place East, Saint Paul, Minnesota.  
 
Mr. Kelley called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 

A. Approval of the November 12, 2014 Board Meeting Minutes   

Ms. Ludwigson moved, Ms. Hankerson seconded, to approve the November 12, 2014 Board Meeting 
minutes. The motion carried 5-0.   
 

B. Election of Petrofund Board Vice-Chair 
 
Ms. Hankerson moved, Mr. Hefner seconded, to re-elect Ms. Ludwigson as Vice-Chair of the Board for 
calendar year 2015. The motion carried 4-0, with Ms. Ludwigson abstaining.  
 

C. MPCA Staff Report and Fund-Financed Summary Report 
 
Sarah Larsen (MPCA) introduced MPCA Assistant Commissioner Kirk Koudelka and MPCA Remediation 
Division Assistant Director Todd Biewen.  
 
Ms. Larsen reported that the MPCA was reviewing reports within the 120-day statutory requirement.  
 
Ms. Larsen updated the Fund-Financed Summary Report memo, indicating that 66% of the funds approved 
by the Board for Petroleum Remediation Program (PRP) work in fiscal year (FY) 2015 had been 
encumbered and 22% had been invoiced. Ms. Larsen noted that $100,000 in funds allocated to the PRP 
had been reallocated to the Emergency Response Program (ERP) to account for greater than expected 
utilization of the ERP. 
 
Mr. Kelley asked why the “Jenson’s Store” project was included on both PRP and ERP lists of fund-financed 
projects. Ms. Larsen explained that in addition to ongoing PRP work, an emergency situation recently 
occurred at that site that affected the water supply for animals and needed to be addressed quickly. 
 
Mr. Kelley asked for a description of the work performed as part of the “ADM – Marshall cooling tower 
water release” project on the ERP list of fund-financed projects. Ms. Larsen indicated that she would find 
out more information and report back to the Board.  
 
Mr. Kelley asked for a description of the work performed as part of the “Olson residence” project on the 
ERP list of fund-financed projects. Jason Moran (MPCA) responded that a substantial fuel oil release had 
occurred at that site. Ms. Hankerson asked what would trigger an emergency response from the MPCA. Mr. 
Moran responded that when a potential emergency situation is reported to ERP staff, they or their  
  



Petrofund Board Meeting Minutes 
January 14, 2015 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
contractors perform an assessment of the potential impacts of the release and take emergency actions if 
they believe there is an imminent risk to human health and the environment. Mr. Moran noted that 
emergency situations often involve large releases or high vapor readings. Mr. Kanner added that the MPCA 
also often receives assistance from local public safety officials in determining whether or not an emergency 
situation exists. Ms. Hankerson asked at what point the costs incurred by the MPCA to address emergency 
situations are recovered. Mr. Moran and Mr. Fischer indicated that once the work has been completed, the 
MPCA refers the fund-financed costs to the Petrofund. 
 
Mr. Kelley asked for an update on the “Aurora Waste Drum Site” project on the ERP list of fund-financed 
projects. Mr. Kanner responded that because of the responsible person’s lack of cooperation, the MPCA 
successfully took legal action to enter the property and perform cleanup work, which stabilized the site. 
 
Mr. Hefner moved, Ms. Hankerson seconded, to approve the MPCA Staff and Fund-Financed Summary 
Reports. The motion carried 5-0.  
 
          D.  Petrofund Staff Report and Fund Report   
 
Mr. Fischer notified the Board that Petrofund staff was meeting its statutory requirement to review initial 
applications within 60 days and supplemental applications within 120 days. Mr. Fischer noted that 
applications were being reviewed within 28 days of their receipt. Mr. Fischer reported that 22 applications 
were received in November and 27 in December. Mr. Fischer reported that a total of $1,984,615.80 in 
claims had been approved for payment, to date, in FY 2015. Ms. Hankerson asked about the ‘Pending’ 
amount from the November 12, 2014 Board meeting. Mr. Fischer responded that staff was waiting for 
additional information from the City of Center City before their claim could be paid. 
 
Mr. Fischer reported that the Department of Employment and Economic Development (DEED) had awarded 
$6,492,658 in Contamination Cleanup and Investigation Grants as part of their November 2014 grant 
cycle, of which $4,187,056 was Petrofund money. Ms. Hankerson expressed concern that the description 
for the “Vadnais Heights – Garceau Hardware” project did not identify that petroleum contamination was 
being addressed. Mr. Kelley asked that a copy of the document(s) the MPCA used to verify that petroleum 
contamination existed at this site be provided to the Board at its next meeting. Jessica Ebertz (MPCA) 
responded that she would obtain the necessary document(s) for the Board. Ms. Ludwigson asked what 
DEED does to advertise the grant program, especially in greater Minnesota. Mr. Fischer indicated that 
DEED conducts regular information sessions around the state geared toward government officials and 
developers. Mr. Hefner indicated that he understood how new development from the DEED grants could 
create jobs, but asked how new development retained jobs. Mr. Fischer responded that he did not know 
the answer to the question, but could pose it to Meredith Udoibok (DEED). Mr. Kanner suggested inviting 
Ms. Udoibok to attend the next Board meeting. Mr. Fischer indicated that he would do so. 
 
Mr. Fischer reported that the proposed legislation to allow for reimbursement of tank removal costs when 
they have been approved by the MPCA as necessary for corrective action had been approved by the 
Governor’s Office, but had not yet been included in a bill for consideration by the Legislature. 
 
Mr. Fischer noted that there was no new information to report regarding the BP litigation. Mr. Fischer 
indicated that staff was in the process of hiring a new legal analyst to assist with the case. 
 
Mr. Fischer reported that the Governor’s Office had not yet made a decision on the open position for the 
experience in claims adjustment member, but that Ms. Hankerson had agreed to continue serving in that 
role, as allowed by statute, until an appointment has been made.  
 
Mr. Fischer presented the Fund Report, informing the Board that the Fund Balance of the Petrofund was 
$12,877,201 and the Cash Balance was $26,856,175.  

 



Petrofund Board Meeting Minutes 
January 14, 2015 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
Mr. Fischer and Colleen Schiltz (Petrofund) provided the Board with a description of how staff has been 
handling environmental liens and asked for Board input on the process. Ms. Hankerson stated that 
whenever Petrofund money is spent, it creates an asset for the responsible person (RP) and value they did 
not have before the leaksite was cleaned up. Ms. Hankerson added that all potential liens should come 
before the Board, even in situations where the lien is equivalent to the entire value of the leaksite property. 
Ms. Ludwigson expressed a desire to avoid unpromulgated rule-making and noted that liens should be 
reviewed on a case-by-case basis.  
 
Mr. Koudelka asked the Board to consider changing the process to identify the lien amounts before fund-
financed work is performed. Mr. Koudelka explained that this would give RPs an idea of their liability for the 
corrective action costs, which could help ensure their cooperation in completing the cleanup work and, in 
some cases, save the MPCA and Petrofund the costs of gaining access to unwilling property owners. Mr. 
Koudelka also asked that the lien process be as consistent as possible so that all RPs’ cases receive 
similar consideration. Ms. Hankserson noted that making lien determinations before the MPCA incurs costs 
would be problematic, since an RP’s financial situation could change dramatically between when the costs 
were estimated and when the work is actually completed. Ms. Hankerson also noted that the estimated 
and actual costs could differ greatly. 
 
Mr. Kelley empathized with RPs in situations where liens are filed, but noted that the Petrofund is cost-
sharing with the RP and covering a majority of the corrective action expense. Mr. Hefner applauded the 
MPCA’s effort at process-improvement and assisting RPs, but expressed concerns about attempting to 
make lien decisions so far in advance of having complete information about each case. Ms. Ludwigson 
noted that it was unlikely that changing the lien process to allow for earlier identification of costs would 
help the MPCA in dealing with the irrational RPs described by Mr. Koudelka. 
 
Ms. Hankerson moved, Ms. Ludwigson seconded, to approve the Petrofund Staff and Fund Reports. The 
motion carried 5-0. 
 
Mr. Kelley noted that Item F. “Consideration of Abandoned Underground Storage Tank Removal Program 
Request” would be handled before Item E. “Consideration of Environmental Lien Filings.” 
 
          F.  Consideration of Abandoned Underground Storage Tank Removal Program Request 
 
Mr. Kelley recused himself from hearing this case. Ms. Ludwigson presided. 
 
1.    Oksana Holdings                                              File #283                                          Engineer: John Houck 
 
Mr. John O’Sullivan, of Oksana Holdings, appeared before the Board to request payment under the 
Abandoned Underground Storage Tank Removal (Abandoned Tank) Program for $4,812.00 in costs he 
incurred to pump out and dispose of petroleum product from an abandoned tank. Staff had previously 
indicated to Mr. O’Sullivan that the Abandoned Tank Program did not allow for reimbursement of costs 
related to tank removal prior to or after entering the program and only provided for the Petrofund to 
remove abandoned tanks using its own contractors.  
 
Mr. O’Sullivan explained that after discovering an abandoned tank in the parking lot of a property he owned 
in Hugo, MN, he had the petroleum product pumped from the tank believing that allowing the product to 
remain would be unsafe. Mr. O’Sullivan indicated that he subsequently contacted John Houck (Petrofund) 
to see if removal of the tank qualified for the Abandoned Tank Program, which it did. Mr. O’Sullivan stated 
that ultimately two tanks were removed and paid for by the Petrofund, along with the petroleum product 
from the second tank. 
  

 



Petrofund Board Meeting Minutes 
January 14, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
Ms. Hankerson asked whether or not Mr. O’Sullivan had called in the discovery of the tank as an 
emergency situation. Mr. O’Sullivan responded that he did not know at the time he found the tanks if he 
was supposed to report the situation to the MPCA. Ms. Ludwigson asked MPCA staff if they would have 
considered this an emergency situation. Mr. Moran indicated that based on Mr. O’Sullivan’s description of 
the situation, the MPCA most likely would have looked at this as an emergency. 
 
Mr. Fischer noted that the costs to pump the petroleum product from the tank do not qualify for payment 
from the Petrofund reimbursement program because tank removal costs are ineligible for reimbursement 
and that they do not qualify for the Abandoned Tank Program because that program does not allow for 
after-the-fact reimbursement. 
 
Ms. Hankerson moved, Ms. Ludwigson seconded, to not take any action on the request for payment of 
costs incurred by Oksana Holdings. The motion carried 4-0.  
 
          E.  Consideration of Environmental Lien Filings  
 
1. Mr. Jeffrey Grovogel                                     Leak # 16086                                   Analyst: Colleen Schiltz 
 
The RP, Mr. Jeffrey Grovogel, participated in the meeting via phone to contest the filing of an environmental 
lien against his property. Mr. Fischer noted that Mr. Grovogel was calling into the meeting because he lives 
in Aitkin, MN, is disabled and was concerned that he would not arrive at the meeting on time if he had 
attempted to attend in person. 
 
Mr. Grovogel stated that he did not believe he was responsible for the release at his property. Mr. Kelley 
and Mr. Hefner explained that regardless of whether or not Mr. Grovogel was at fault for the release, he 
was considered the responsible person as the owner of the leaking petroleum storage tank. 
 
Ms. Ludwigson noted that Mr. Grovogel and his ex-wife had owned the leaksite property together at the 
time of the release, but that the property was now in his name only. Mr. Grovogel indicated that the 
property was split up as part of the divorce, with him receiving the portion with the home and leaking tank. 
 
Mr. Hefner moved, Ms. Ludwigson seconded, to approve the Department of Commerce to file an 
environmental lien in the amount of $1,628.25 against the property, which amounts to 5% of the costs 
incurred by the MPCA. The motion carried 3-2, with Mr. Kelley and Mr. Kanner voting against. 
 
         G.  MPCA Vapor Intrusion Closed Site Project Update 
 
Tom Higgins (MPCA) gave a presentation titled MPCA Vapor Intrusion Update. 
 
Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 12:30 p.m.. 
 

 


	Wednesday, January 14, 2015
	A. Approval of the November 12, 2014 Board Meeting Minutes

